A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Simona Vuletic and Michael Helgeson (hereinafter "Vuletic") ask 

this court to accept review of the decision designated in Part B of this 

motion. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Vuletic seeks review of the Court of Appeals, Division I, decision of 

December 16, 2013. Her Motions for Reconsideration and to Publish were 

denied on January 27, 2014. Copies of the decision and the denial orders are 

in the Appendix. 

The trial court dismissed Vuletic's action for personal injuries 

against Respondent, Darrell R. McKissic (hereinafter "McKissic) on the 

basis of insufficiency of service of process and that waiver and estoppel 

were not persuasive or nor applicable. CP 216-7. The Court of Appeals 

affirmed. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Does the Court of Appeals' holding that McKissic was not served 

with process conflict with the decision of Division III of the Court 

of Appeals, in Brown-Edwards v. Powell, 144 Wn. App. 109, 182 

P.3d 441 (2008) and with Division I's own decision in Scanlan v. 

Townsend,_ Wn.App _, _ P.3d. _(Case No. 69106-6-1, 
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decided December 30, 2013)(Petition for Review pending), 

rendered two weeks after the decision in this case? RAP 13.4(b)(2). 

2. Does the Court of Appeals' holding conflict with or misapply this 

Court's decisions relating to substantial compliance relating to 

service of process as set forth in Sheldon v. Fettig, 129 Wn.2d 601, 

919 P.2d 1209 (1996)? RAP 13.4(b)(l). 

3. Does the Court of Appeals' holding conflict with or misapply this 

Court's decision relating to waiver of the affirmative defense of 

insufficiency of process as set forth in Lybbert v. Grant County, 

141 Wn.2d 29, 1 P.3d 1124 (2000)? RAP 13.4(b)(1). 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Facts as to Sufficiency of Service ofProcess 

Jill Corr, the nanny for McKissic's children, testified in deposition 

that: on the morning of January 3, 2012, she confirmed to the deputy sheriff 

that this was the McKissic residence, that McKissic was in the shower, and 

that she was over 18. (CP 80-81.) The deputy asked her if she would make 

sure that McKissic got the important papers he was handing her and she told 

him she would. (!d.) She placed the papers on the kitchen counter. (!d.) 

Shortly thereafter she told McKissic about the papers and she saw him head 

towards the kitchen. (!d.) That same day she told Ms. Nellermoe, 

McKissic's wife and an attorney, about the papers. (CP 81, 196). 
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Corr was nanny for the McKissic children from 2004 to 2006 and 

from 2008 continuing to the time of her deposition. (CP 78). She always 

had a key to the residence during the times she worked for McKissic. (CP 

61). She works every school day from about 6:30A.M. until she drives one 

of the children to school around 8:15 A.M. and while free to treat the 

McKissic house as her own, she typically returned around 2:30 P.M. each 

afternoon either picking up one child at school or meeting both children 

when they would return, and working there until about 6:30P.M. (CP 59-

60; 78-79). She stayed overnight in the McKissic home to care for one child 

on occasion when McKissic and/or his wife left town. (CP 60-61; 79). 

McKissic in deposition testified he was upstairs at the time the 

deputy came to the house on January 3, 2012. (CP 62). When he came 

downstairs to leave for work, Corr told him of the papers which he picked 

up and moved to a basket in his home office. (CP 61). His attorney had 

advised him that he would be served so he expected the papers. (CP 61-62). 

He knows what legal papers are, knew he was the defendant in a lawsuit 

arising from the accident of March 1, 2009, and acknowledged that the 

papers were the summons, complaint, and case schedule. (CP 62). 
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B. Facts as to Waiver of the Insufficiency of Service Defense 

On January 5, 2012, a verbal "notice of appearance" was made by 

phone call to Vuletic's attorney (hereinafter "Rosenberg") (CP 32). The 

Return (Affidavit) of Service which appeared regular on its face, was filed 

on January 12, 2012. CP 5. On January 26, 2012, McKissic's counsel 

(hereinafter "Bendele") emailed and served a Notice of Appearance. (CP 

37-40). Later on January 26, Bendele and Rosenberg exchanged emails (CP 

32, 41-42) with Bendele confirming that the insurance carrier had provided 

him the Vuletic settlement package and he requested the names of 

plaintiffs' health care providers for preparation of stipulations. (CP 32, 41-

42). The next day Rosenberg responded with details as to Vuletic's 

treatment providers along with prior medical providers and requesting that 

Bendele provide the stipulations to secure records. (CP 32, 43). 

On February 2, 2012, Rosenberg served Pattern Interrogatories on 

Bendele. (CP 74). Interrogatory No. 23 asked: "Do you allege insufficiency 

of process or of service of process? If so, please state the facts upon which 

you base your allegation." And Interrogatory 24 asked the details of any 

affirmative defenses? (CP 76). Responses were due March 5, 2012, three 

weeks before the statute of limitations would expire. The defense never 

answered nor objected to those Interrogatories. (CP 32). 
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On March 16, 2012, Bendele left Rosenberg a phone message 

inquiring as to the status of his being provided the names of Vuletic's 

medical providers. (CP 33). Rosenberg both called back and sent an email 

indicating that this information had been provided in Rosenberg's January 

27, 2012, email to Bendele. (CP 33, 44-45). On March 20, 2012, Bendele 

confirmed by email that he would provide copies of the medical records 

retrieved and Rosenberg emailed him back to prepare the stipulations and 

send them over for signatures. (CP 33, 46-47). On March 22, 2012, Bendele 

emailed Rosenberg a letter that among other things indicated that State 

Farm wanted him to take early depositions (suggesting the weeks of May 7 

or 14, 2012) "so we can start talking sooner (sic) than later regarding 

potential resolution of your clients' claims." (CP 33, 48-50). Bendele's 

letter also transmitted Medical and Employment stipulations for records 

release; Requests for Statement of Damages; and Interrogatories and 

Requests for Production which dealt solely with the merits of the claims 

both as to the facts of the collision and damages. (CP 33). Vuletic 

immediately began drafting extensive and detailed responses to the 

Interrogatories and Requests for Production. (Id.) 

On March 26, 2012, the ninety days to serve process and have it 

relate back to the date of filing the complaint would have expired pursuant 

to RCW 4.16.170. (CP 33). On April 6, 2012, Rosenberg emailed Bendele 
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timely transmitting to him the executed stipulations and noting that it 

appeared the defense had yet to answer the complaint. (CP 33-34, 51). 1 On 

April 18, 2012, Rosenberg emailed Bendele reminding him of the April 6, 

email. (CP 34). 

On Friday, April 20, 2012, Bendele sent an email to Rosenberg 

attaching McKissic's Answer. (CP 34, 52). The Answer raised the 

affirmative defenses of lack of service of process, insufficiency of process, 

and the statute of limitations for the first time. (CP 34, 53-57). On Monday, 

April 23, 2012, Bendele and Rosenberg spoke, and Bendele said that 

McKissic had indicated to him that the nanny who was served did not reside 

at McKissic's. (CP 34). Contrary to this assertion however, at his 

deposition on May 11, 2012, McKissic testified that while he did not recall 

when he became aware that there was a service of process issue, he 

(McKissic) became aware of it from Bendele or Bendele's office. (CP 62). 

E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

I. The Decision Is in Conflict with Two Other 
Decisions of the Court of Appeals as to 
Sufficiency of Service of Process. (Issue 1) 

1 This request is routine in King County for cases not subject to mandatory arbitration, 
since the plaintiff is required to file a Confirmation of Joinder, certifying that "all 
mandatory pleadings have been filed." King County Local Civil Rule (KCLCR) 4.2(a){l). 
Pursuant to KCLCR 4(e)(2), the Confirmation is not due until 23 weeks after filing of the 
lawsuit. In the instant case the lawsuit was filed on December 27, 2011 (CP 2) making the 
Confirmation not due until May 5, 2012. 
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In Scanlan v. Townsend, _ Wn.App --' P.3d. 

(2013)(Petition for Review pending) a different panel of Division 12 in a 

published opinion considered whether the King County Superior Court 

erred in dismissing Scanlan's personal injury action on the basis of 

insufficient service of process and reversed the dismissal. 

The facts in Scanlan are that at the time of service of process on 

defendant Townsend's father in Vancouver, Washington, Townsend 

actually resided in Auburn Washington. The father at a later date within the 

statute of limitations, gave the papers to Townsend, albeit not at her 

residence. The Scanlan court found the declarations and depositions 

established that the defendant was served. (Slip. Op. at pp. 8-9; Appendix 

pp. A 35-36.) 

The facts in the instant case are very similar. The sworn testimony 

of Corr and McKissic detailed at pp. 2-4 show indisputably that McKissic 

received process at his own residence on January 3, 2012, well within the 

statute of limitations. Comparing the facts in Scanlan with the facts in the 

instant case shows the only potential difference is that Corr did not 

physically place process in the hands ofMcKissic.3 

2 Judge Grosse is the only Judge common to both the Scanlan decision and the instant 
decision. 
3 In Scanlan there was acknowledgement that the father "gave" the defendant the papers 
but it cannot be told if that meant he actually placed them in her hands. (Scanlan Slip op. 
at p. 6; Appendix at p. A-33.) 
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In Scanlan the panel noted (slip op. at p. 7 [A-34]) that the issue of 

proper service of process is a "question of law that we review de novo" 

citing Streeter-Dybdahl v. Huynh, 157 Wn.App. 408, 412, 236 P.3d 986 

(2010).4 The Scanlan court upheld service of process relying upon Division 

III's opinion in Brown-Edwards v. Powell, 144 Wn. App. 109, 182 P.3d 

441 (2008), for the proposition that the testimony of the defendant's father 

that he delivered a copy of process to the defendant coupled with the 

defendant's testimony that she received them from her father within the 

statute of limitations period proved the sufficiency of service: 

Here, there is no dispute that Townsend's father was 
competent to effect service and that he personally delivered a 
copy of the summons and complaint to Townsend within the 
statute of limitations. Townsend's deposition testimony also 
established proof of service under CR 4(g)(5) and (7). See 
also Hamill v. Brooks. 32 Wn. App. 150, 151- 52, 646 P.2d 
151 (1982) ("The time [of service] was established through 
[the defendant's] deposition and the affidavit of [the 
plaintiff]'s attorney .... [The defendant's] admission is the best 
possible evidence that he received the summons and 
complaint."). 

(Scanlan slip op. at p. 12 [A-39].) 

4 Division I made the same statement (slip op. at p. 3) citing Goettemoeller v. Twist, 161 
Wn. App. 103, 107, 253 P.3d 405 (2011) for the proposition. And further noted (slip op. at 
p. 4) that in reviewing the dismissal, the facts must be considered in "the light most 
favorable to the nonmoving party (here Vuletic) citing Indoor Billboard/Wash., Inc. v. 
Integra Telecom of Wash., Inc., 162 Wn.2d 59, 70, 170 P.3d 10 (2007). 
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The issue was raised by Vuletic m the instant case and found 

without merit at p. 9 of the slip opinion. 

Here, in contrast, Corr did not give the summons and 
complaint to McKissic. She left the documents on the counter 
and did not see him pick them up. Nor did she sign an 
affidavit of service indicating that she had handed the 
summons and complaint to him. For these reasons, Brown
Edwards is not helpful. 

Per Scanlan the testimony and admissions are sufficient proof and the 

absence of an affidavit of service by the father was not critical. Slip op. at p. 

12. Division I also relied upon its own decision in Hamil v. Brooks, 32 Wn. 

App. 150, 151-52, 646 P.2d 151 (1982), that the defendant's sworn 

admission is "the best possible evidence that he received the summons and 

complaint." Similarly, sworn statements by Corr and McKissic establish 

that McKissic received the papers. That leaves only the distinction that Corr 

"left the documents on the counter and did not see him [McKissic] pick 

them up." However, McKissic fills that "gap" with his testimony that he in 

fact picked them up, knowing what they were and put them in his home 

office. This is not "drop service" such as would be the case in leaving legal 

papers on a doorstep for example, as all events occurred within the 

McKissic's home. 

To approve the service in Scanlan but dismiss the service in Vuletic 

places "form over substance" to unnecessarily cause an injustice. The 
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analysis of Division I in the instant case is in conflict with the Scanlan 

analysis which Vuletic believes was correctly decided and is in conflict with 

Brown-Edwards. The facts of the instant case are so close to those two 

cases that Vuletic urges this Court grant the Petition and find that process 

was "delivered" to McKissic within the meaning ofRCW 4.28.080. 

II. The Decision Conllicts with and Misapplies a 
Decision of the Supreme Court as to Substantial 
Compliance in Relation to Service of Process. (Issue 2) 

In Sheldon v. Fettig, 129 Wn.2d 601, 609, 919 P.2d 1209 (1996), 

this Court in construing house of usual abode under RCW 4.28.080(15) 

concluded that it should be "liberally construed to effectuate service and 

uphold jurisdiction of the court." In the instant case, Division I (Slip op. at 

p. 6.) held that Sheldon's liberal construction was limited to "house of usual 

abode" and did not extend to a liberal construction of "resident" citing Salts 

v. Estes, 133 Wn.2d 160, 170, 943 P.2d 275 (1997). The service that was 

stricken in Salts was upon a neighbor who was checking on the house while 

the defendant was on vacation and by happenstance was there when the 

process server came. Division I relied upon this Court's comment in Salts 

that a liberal construction to uphold service under the Salts facts, would 

mean a "housekeeper, a hahy-siUer, a repair person or a visitor at the 

defendant's home could be served" (emphasis by Division I) and such 

would "not comport with due process" (Slip op. at p. 5-6.) Division I went 
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on to consider the nanny in the instant case to be the equivalent of a baby-

sitter whose "mere presence at the home as McKissic's employee does not 

satisfy the "resident" requirement of RCW 4.28.080(15)." (Slip op. at p. 6.) 

But as the facts detailed above at p. 2-4 show, nanny Corr was not merely a 

"baby-sitter", a person who by definition cares for another's children during 

a short absence,5 but was essentially a substitute parent figure. 

It is respectfully submitted that Division I reads the Salts analysis of 

Sheldon v. Fettig too restrictively and that under the facts of the instant 

case, upholding service would not mean that a person who was "merely 

present" at the defendant's house of usual abode could be served. The four 

justice dissent in Salts, relying upon Sheldon and its analysis, would have 

upheld even the service upon the neighbor who was in the defendant's 

house by happenstance! Ms. Corr had vastly more connection to the 

McKissic residence than did the neighbor doing a temporary favor for the 

defendant in Salts. 

III. The Decision Conflicts with and Misapplies a Decision 
of the Supreme Court as to Waiver of Insufficiency of 
Service of Process. (Issue 3) 

In discussing waiver in the context of service of process the Lybbert 

Court stated at p. 38: 

5 See e.g., http://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/babysit defining babysit as "to care 
for children usually during a short absence of the parents". 
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The waiver can occur in two ways. It can occur if the 
defendant's assertion of the defense is inconsistent with the 
defendant's previous behavior. Romjue, 60 Wn. App. at 281, 
803 P .2d 57. It can also occur if the defendant's counsel has 
been dilatory in asserting the defense. Raymond v. Fleming, 
24 Wash.App. 112, 115, 500 P.2d 614 (1979). (Emphasis 
added.) 

In the instant case the defense conduct was inconsistent by seeking to move 

the case speedily to a negotiated settlement and as well as dilatory by failing 

to timely answer the complaint or timely respond to interrogatories, which 

specifically inquired as to any service affirmative defense. 

In attempting to distinguish this case from Lybbert v. Grant County, 

141 Wn.2d 29, 1 P.3d 1124 (2000), Division I fails to distinguish it in any 

material way. Division I relied upon its own analysis of Lybbert in Harvey 

v. Obermeit, 163 Wn. App. 311, 261 P.3d 671 (2011), a case which 

discussed Lybbert at length before concluding there is no waiver. Closer 

scrutiny of Harvey shows it does not support Division I's affirmance in the 

instant case. 

Here, Obermeit raised the defense in his timely filed answer, 
maintained throughout discovery that service had not been 
proper, and then filed his motion to dismiss approximately six 
and a half months after Harvey first filed suit. He did not 
waive the defense. 

163 Wn. App at 326-27. McKissic, unlike the defendant in Harvey, did not 

timely answer, did not raise any issue in discovery as to service much less 
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maintain throughout discovery like in Harvey that service was improper. 

Thus, unlike the defense conduct in Harvey, McKissic's defense acted 

inconsistent with the later asserted defense. The Court's analysis conflicts 

with Division III's decisions in Blankenship v. Kaldor, 114 Wn. App. 312, 

57 P.3d 295, (2002)(rev. den. 149 Wn.2d 1021 (2003), Butler v. Joy, 116 

Wn. App. 291, 298, 65 P.3d 671 (2003) and Romjue v. Fairchild, 60 Wn. 

App. 278, 803 P.2d 57 (1991). 

This Court concluded in Lybbert at pp. 44-45: 

. . . the County failed to preserve the defense by pleading 
it in its answer or other responsive pleading before 
proceeding with discovery. Instead, it engaged in 
discovery over the course of several months and then, after 
the statute of limitations had apparently extinguished the 
claim against it, it asserted the defense. French does not 
remotely stand for the proposition that it is acceptable for a 
defendant to lie in wait, engage in discovery unrelated to 
the defense, and thereafter assert the defense after the 
clock has run on the plaintiffs cause of action. (Emphasis 
added.) 

In both Lybbert and the instant case, the defense failed to answer the 

complaint timely, instead waiting after the running of the statute of 

limitations. In Lybbert the answer was three months after the statute would 

have expired; here McKissic answered a month after. However, once the 

answer is made after the statute of limitations would expire, it really does 

not matter if it is a month, three months, or longer. The crucial point is that 
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the defense has waited until the statute of limitations expired, while acting 

as if the case is to be negotiated or tried, without ever raising any service 

issue either explicitly or implicitly. In the instant case, Division I further 

stated that waiver could be found where a party "engages in considerable 

discovery not related to the defense." (Slip Op. at p. 12.) However, Lybbert 

does not use the term "considerable" in discussing the fact of the discovery 

being unrelated to the defense. Vuletic believes it is the nature of the 

discovery that is important, not its quantity. 

The instant case is stronger than Lybbert in several regards. First, in 

Lybbert, the service statute mandated service on the county auditor and so 

when service was made upon the administrative assistant to the county 

commissioners (141 Wn.3d at p. 32) the return of service would on its face 

put plaintiff Lybbert and his attorney on notice of a service issue, which 

was contrary to the instant case. 

Secondly, timely response by the defendant county to the 

interrogatories in Lybbert would have still fallen outside the statute of 

limitations since the plaintiffs interrogatories were served on the county 

only eight days before the running of the statute of limitations.6 In the 

6 In Lybbert the accident was March 8, 1993. The case was filed August 30, 1995, and the 
attempted service was on September 6, 1995. Thus the last date to serve process would 
have been March 8, 1996. Plaintiffs served interrogatories on the defense on February 29, 
1996, one of which inquired as to any affirmative defenses. The thirty days to respond 
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instant case, timely response by McKissic would have left three weeks for 

the service to be perfected before the statute oflimitations expired. See also, 

Romjue v. Fairchild, 60 Wn. App. 278 , 803 P.2d 57 (Div. III, 1991)(rev. 

den. 116 Wn.2d 1026 (1991)) and Blankenship v. Kaldor, 114 Wn. App. 

312, 57 P.3d 295, (Div. III, 2002)(rev. den. 149 Wn.2d 1021 (2003)) (in 

both cases the defense conducted discovery that was unrelated to service

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