RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON Mar 25, 2014, 12:46 pm BY RONALD R. CARPENTER CLERK

No. 90030-2

.

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

SIMONA VULETIC and MICHAEL HELGESON, husband and wife,

Appellants

v.

DARRELL R. McKISSIC,

Respondent

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

BENDELE & MENDEL, PLLC

Levi Bendele WSBA No. 26411 Brandon K. Batchelor WSBA No. 42477 200 West Mercer Street Suite 411 Seattle, WA 98119 (206) 240-4267

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

III. ARGUMENT AGAINST ACCEPTING PETITION FOR REVIEW

A. <u>The Court of Appeals' Decision Regarding Service of Process</u> was Correct and Should not be Disturbed

1. It is Plaintiff's Responsibility to Ensure Proper Service

Washington law firmly rests the burden of ensuring proper service with the plaintiff. It is plaintiff's responsibility to see that the proper steps are taken to ensure sufficiency of service of process. Even in cases where a legal messenger makes a mistake, "the courts have never been receptive to the argument that a defense motion to dismiss for improper service should be denied because 'it was the legal messenger's mistake'" 15A Tegland and Ende, <u>Washington Practice</u>, § at 15.3 (2011-2012), at p. 216.

The legal messenger here knew that nanny Corr was not a resident and that service was ineffective. Despite this, he filed a false Return of Service, which gave rise to this situation. McKissic did not "lie in wait" and use the messenger's mistake to his advantage. Instead, he reported the defect to Vuletic as soon as it was discovered. This Court's review here should be mindful of the fact that the misrepresentation and deceit creating this issue came from the messenger and was not to product of any action by McKissic. The final analysis, in any event, places the responsibility for ensuring proper service with plaintiff. Service was not proper here and the lower courts rightfully dismissed Vuletic's claims and affirmed the dismissal. Those decisions need not be reviewed.

2. The Court's Decision is not in Conflict with Other Service of Process Decisions

Vuletic's position regarding the <u>Scanlan v. Townsend</u>, Wn.App. , P.3d (2013) matter is the same as previously outlined in her Motion for Reconsideration to Division I after the lower court upheld the trial court's dismissal of her claims against McKissic. The Scanlan holding relies upon the Division III opinion in Brown-Edwards v. Powell, 144 Wn.App. 109, 182 P.3d 441 (2008). Division I reviewed the Brown-Edwards matter in determining its holding in the instant case. The lower court stated that **Brown-Edwards** was distinguishable and "not helpful," as nanny Corr did not actually give the Summons and Complaint to McKissic. (Slip op. at 8-9). By contrast, in Brown-Edwards, the Summons and Complaint were personally delivered to the defendant. Brown-Edwards, 144 Wn.App. at 110. The key facts in Scanlon are indistinguishable from Brown-Edwards. As such, the Scanlon holding is not on-point in this matter. Nanny Corr did not personally serve Mr. McKissic, which is the critical distinguishing fact between the instant case and both Scanlon and Brown-Edwards.

The "conflict" Vuletic argues is contrived and the cases in question do not actually reach different conclusions. The conflict is only related to the facts of the cases at issue. The controlling fact, as outlined above, is that the Summons and Complaint were personally served on defendant in <u>Scanlon</u> and <u>Brown-Edwards</u> and not in the instant case. In reality, Vuletic's argument requests that this Court disregard the requirement of personal service simply because the process eventually ended up with McKissic. Vuletic argues this is "form over substance." The requirement that defendant actually be personally served, however, by substitute service, is a well-established and long-standing principle.

Division I reviewed the question of whether the facts in the instant case comply with <u>Brown-Edwards</u>. The lower court found <u>Brown-Edwards</u> not to provide controlling or persuasive authority. The <u>Scanlon</u> holding is based on the same analysis as <u>Brown-Edwards</u>, so it does not provide direction either. Division I's opinion in <u>Scanlon</u> does not change the analysis in the instant case at all. Instead, Vuletic is requesting that this Court forego the personal service requirement in RCW 4.28.080 and allow "delivery," so long as it eventually gets to the defendant. This would, of course, completely undermine the requirements of the statute. Moreover, Vuletic does not offer any actual authority for her proposition that personal service should not be required.

The Division I opinion in <u>Scanlon</u> does not alter any previous analysis in the instant case. It also does not provide authority for the relief requested by Vuletic. Review should not be granted on this issue.

3. There is no Substantial Compliance in this Case

Vuletic attempted to serve McKissic pursuant to RCW 4.28.080(15). This statute authorizes substitute service. For substitute service to be effective, the plaintiff must satisfy three requirements: (1) the papers must be left at the defendant's place of abode; (2) the papers must be left with a person of suitable age and discretion, and (3) the person with

whom the service papers are left must be "<u>then resident therein</u>." RCW 4.28.080(15)(emphasis added). Vuletic argues that the lower court erred in its opinion that plaintiff's service upon nanny Corr was substantially compliant with the statute.

Division I reviewed the language from <u>Sheldon v. Fettig</u>, 129 Wash.2d 601, 919 P.2d 129 (1996) cited here by plaintiff. (Slip op. at p. 6.). Plaintiff uses this language to argue that the lower court incorrectly relied upon the holding <u>Salts v Estes</u>, 133 Wn.2d 160, 943 P.2d 160 (1997). The reality is, however, that a reading of <u>Sheldon</u> which validates the method of service in the instant case would overturn the decision in <u>Salts</u> and the multiple cases leading to it regarding service on employees of the defendant.

In <u>Sheldon</u>, this Court determined that the home where plaintiff sought to effect substituted service was <u>actually the defendant's usual</u> <u>place of abode</u> when plaintiff attempted substitute service of plaintiff by leaving a copy of the summons and complaint with defendant's brother. <u>Sheldon</u>, 129 Wash.2d at 603. The issue in <u>Sheldon</u> was "whether the place the summons was left constitutes defendant's house of usual abode." <u>Id</u>. The <u>Sheldon</u> case does not provide compelling authority to the question here, because the issue in <u>Sheldon</u> was whether the home served was <u>defendant's</u> place of abode and not whether the substitute service agent was actually a resident of defendant's abode. That is a different question entirely than is presented here. Vuletic argues that the Division I opinion's interpretation of the <u>Salts</u> matter is in error due to the holding in <u>Sheldon</u>. This argument is flawed. As noted above, the issues are not the same. Also, <u>Salts</u> was decided <u>after Sheldon</u> and this Court analyzed <u>Sheldon</u> in its decision. <u>Salts</u>, 133 Wash.2d at 165-166. As such, if <u>Sheldon</u> should be the basis for a different outcome here, it should have been the basis for a different outcome here, it should have been the <u>Sheldon</u> decision as the "outer boundaries" of RCW 4.28.080(15). <u>Id</u>.

.

Unlike <u>Sheldon</u>, the <u>Salts</u> case is directly on point as it analyzes the "resident therein" requirement of RCW 4.28.080(15), which is at issue here (with respect to this argument from Vuletic). <u>Id</u>. at 162. In <u>Salts</u>, the plaintiff served defendant's neighbor who was looking after defendant's home while he was out of town for a couple of weeks. <u>Id</u>. at 163. The trial Court granted defendant dismissal, holding that the neighbor was not a resident for the purpose of RCW 4.28.080(15). <u>Id</u>. at 164. The Court of Appeals upheld the dismissal and review was granted. <u>Id</u>. This Court determined, ultimately, that being a "[r]esident requires something more than "present" in the defendant's usual abode" and that, for RCW 4.28.080(15), "a person is a resident if the person is actually living in the particular home." <u>Id</u>. at 167, 170. The trial court's dismissal was affirmed by this Court. In its discussion, the court provided the following discussion:

"We decline to interpret RCW 4.28.080(15) so that mere presence in the defendant's home or "possession" of the premises is sufficient to satisfy the statutory residency requirement. Under such a view, service on just about any person present at the defendant's home, regardless of the person's real connection with the defendant, will be proper. A housekeeper, a baby-sitter, a repair person or a visitor at the defendant's home could be served. <u>Such a relaxed</u> <u>approach toward service of process renders the words</u> <u>of the statute a nullity and does not comport with the</u> <u>principles of due process that underlie service of process</u> <u>statutes</u>.

Our duty is to effectuate the intent of the Legislature in enacting a statute. If a statute is unambiguous, as is RCW 4.28.080(15), we are obliged to apply the language as the Legislature wrote it, rather than amend it by judicial construction....We must provide consistency and predictability to the law so the people of Washington may conform their behavior accordingly. The language of RCW 4.28.080(15) sets forth the standards for substituted service of process. We best accomplish the purpose of establishing predictable standards by not stretching the meaning of those standards beyond their plain boundaries." Id., at 169-170. (emphasis added).

Division I in this matter took its decision on this issue directly from this Court's holding in <u>Salts</u>. (Slip op. at 7-8). It is not in error and needs not be reviewed. Nothing in the record establishes that nanny Corr is a resident in the McKissic abode. The "usual rule is that service on employees and others who do not reside in the defendant's home does not comport with due process." <u>Salts</u>, at 168. Plaintiff is asking the court to draw some manner of difference between a baby-sitter and a nanny for the purpose of service. This question has already been answered by this Court in <u>Salts</u>: "service on an employee of the defendant who spends only a part of his time at defendant's residence is defective." Id. at 169. The point the court is making in <u>Salts</u> by determining that a housekeeper, babysitter, repair person, etc. are <u>not</u> sufficient targets for service of process is defined by the fact that these types of people do not reside at the home of the plaintiffs, which is the requirement in the statute. In the instant case, nanny Corr does not represent any distinguishing type of non-resident. Nanny Corr is an employee who does not reside with defendant. Vuletic's argument that she is a "substitute parent figure" is speculative and no authority is provided to show that such a relationship (were it to exist) would change the outcome in this matter.

Vuletic's reading of <u>Sheldon</u> is self-serving and does not comport with on-point authority coming after the <u>Sheldon</u> holding. In addition, as outlined in <u>Salts</u>, such a reading would eviscerate the statute and render its requirements meaningless. This Court should not grant review on the issue of substantial compliance.

B. McKissic's Service of Process Defense was not Waived

In 2000, this Court held that a defendant could waive a service of process defense by engaging in discovery and settlement negotiations. Lybbert v. Grant, 141 Wn.2d 29, 1 P.3d 1124 (2000). The Lybbert decision is premised upon the court's disapproval of a defendant "lying in wait" and notifying a plaintiff of a deficiency in service only after the statute has expired. According to the Lybbert holding, Waiver is appropriate "to prevent a defendant from <u>ambushing</u> plaintiff during litigation either through <u>delay in asserting a defense</u> or <u>misdirecting the</u> <u>plaintiff away from a defense for a tactical advantage</u>. King v.

Page 12 of 20

<u>Snohomish County</u>, 146 Wn.2d 420, 47 P.3d 563 (citing <u>Lybbert v. Grant</u> <u>County</u>, 141 Wn.2d 29, 40, 1 P.3d 1124 (2000)). (emphasis added).

In <u>Lybbert</u>, this Court held that a party could waive its defense of insufficient service of process when (1) defendant's assertion of the defense is inconsistent with defendant's previous behavior, or (2) defendant's <u>counsel</u> has been dilatory in asserting the defense. <u>Lybbert</u>, 141 Wn.2d at 39.

Since the <u>Lybbert</u> ruling, this Court has identified three circumstances where a party has waived a service of process defense: (1) where a party's actions indicate that the defense is abandoned, (2) where defendant actively sought to conceal the defense until after the expiration of the statute of limitation and the 90-day tolling period, and (3) where defendant engages in considerable discovery not related to the defense. <u>Harvey v. Obermeit</u>, 163 Wn.App. 311, 261 P.3d 671 (2011).

While a waiver of a service of process defense is certainly possible, the authorities that plaintiff relies upon are all distinguishable from the instant case and do not provide an on-point basis for determining that McKissic waived his service of process defense. In addition, Vuletic's factual contentions and argument (based on the same) do not accurately apprise the court of the situation at hand. As a reminder, nanny Corr was not a resident. Sheriff Hillard, who attempted service, prepared and filed a false Return of Service indicating that nanny Corr was a resident. Vuletic requested McKissic file an Answer in April 2012, <u>after</u> the state of limitations and 90-day tolling period had expired in March 2012. Neither party knew of the inaccuracy in the Return of Service until Vuletic requested the Answer. To that point, McKissic's counsel (Mr. Bendele) relied upon the inaccurate Return of Service. Mr. Bendele promptly notified Vuletic of the service of process issue two days after it was discovered.

.

Division I considered the conduct of McKissic prior to asserting the service of process defense. Specifically, it considered McKissic's statements regarding quick resolution, his participation in discovery, and his failure to answer interrogatories regarding service, and the court still determined a waiver had not occurred. (Slip op. at 10). All of Vuletic's cited authority regarding waiver is distinguishable based on the foregoing facts, which Division I found to be undisputed.

1. McKissic's Assertion of Service of Process Defense is not Inconsistent with Prior Behavior as he did not Conduct Considerable Discovery and did not Abandon the Defense

The mere act of conducting some discovery is not necessarily give rise to a waiver of a service of process defense. <u>Harvey</u>, 163 Wn.App. at 324 (citing to <u>Lybbert</u>, 141 Wn.2d at 41). The discovery conducted must be considerable. <u>Id</u>. Vuletic cites to the <u>Lybbert</u> matter as her primary authority on this issue. In <u>Lybbert</u>, however, the defendant conducted discovery that did not relate to the issue of service of process for nine months. <u>Lybbert</u>, 141 Wash.2d at 35. When compared with the facts of <u>Lybbert</u>, McKissic did not conduct "considerable" discovery. Instead, McKissic engaged in limited, generic, and perfunctory discovery for approximately three months.

In Lybbert, defendant also did not respond to discovery requests about the service of process issue when a timely response would have allowed the plaintiff several days to cure the defective service. Id. at 42. Here, that would have been an impossibility as McKissic did not know of Vuletic's defective service until after the 90-day tolling period had expired and after the opportunity to cure the defect. In addition, plaintiff requested responses to his pattern interrogatories in Lybbert. Id. at 50. Vuletic made no such requests here. Despite Vuletic's urging that the instant case is "virtually indistinguishable" from the Lybbert holding, key facts do not align when the matters are compared.

In <u>Blankenship v. Kaldor</u>, 114 Wn.App. 312, 319-320 57 P.3d 295 (2012), defendant conducted written discovery, depositions, and extensive evidence gathering not related to the service of process defense <u>after</u> defendant knew or should have known it existed. The court determined that defendant had engaged in significant expenditures of time and money litigating the case and, as such, waived his defense. <u>Id</u>.

In <u>King v. Snohomish Co</u>, 146 Wn.2d 420, 47 P.3d 563 (2002), the parties engaged in 45 months of litigation and discovery including participation in mediation, 18 depositions, and motions for summary judgment on issued unrelated to the claim filing defense. <u>Id.</u> As trial neared, defendant moved to dismiss plaintiff's claims based upon the

"claim filing" defense. <u>Id.</u> The trial court denied the motion and the Court of Appeals reversed. <u>Id.</u> When the case was brought before the Supreme Court, this Court held that the defendant acted inconsistently with its affirmative defense by engaging in extensive, costly, and prolonged discovery and litigation and, therefore, had waived the defense. <u>Id.</u> at 426.

.

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